
PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

AGENDA 

January 24, 2012 



CITY OF OAK HARBOR       AGENDA 
PLANNING COMMISSION January 24, 2012 
REGULAR MEETING   7:30 P.M. 
CITY HALL – COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 
 
ROLL CALL: NEIL      JENSEN    FAKKEMA      
 

WASINGER       OLIVER   
    
   WALLIN    JOHNSON-PFEIFFER    
 
 
  
1. Approval of Minutes – November 22, 2011   

 
2. Public Comment – Planning Commission will accept public comment for items 

not otherwise on the agenda for the first 15 minutes of the Planning Commission 
meeting.  
 

4. 2012 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT DOCKET – Public Hearing 
The Planning Commission will conduct a public hearing on the preliminary docket 
for the 2012 Comprehensive Plan amendment process.  Planning 
Commissioners evaluated several discretionary items at their November 22, 
2011 meeting and will make their final recommendation to the City Council as to 
which discretionary items should be placed on the 2012 Comprehensive Plan 
Amendment Docket. For more details visit www.coh2012comprehensive 
plan.blogspot.com  

 
 

 
 

 
 

2



MINUTES 

 

November 22, 2011 

3



 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
CITY HALL – COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
November 22, 2011 
 
ROLL CALL:  Present: Bruce Neil, Keith Fakkema, Jeff Wallin, Greg Wasinger, Kristi Jensen, 

Gerry Oliver and Jill Johnson.   
Staff Present:  Development Services Director, Steve Powers; Senior Planners, 
Ethan Spoo and Cac Kamak and Associate Planner, Melissa Sartorius. 

 
Chairman Neil called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. 
 
MINUTES: MS. JENSEN MOVED, MR. FAKKEMA SECONDED, MR. OLIVER 

ABSTAINED, MOTION CARRIED TO APPROVE THE OCTOBER 25, 2011 
MINUTES AS PRESENTED.  

 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  
None present for comment. 
 
SIGN CODE UPDATE – Public Meeting 
The Planning Commission continued its discussion of amendments to OHMC 19.36.080 
(“Temporary and Special Signs”).  Staff addressed Planning Commission questions from the 
October meeting about the temporary sign code amendments. The proposed Code 
amendments address time, manner, and place provisions for temporary signs, especially 
political signs, located on public property. 

Mr. Spoo highlighted the following Planning Commission questions and answers: 

• Question: Does the Collier vs. City of Tacoma case mean that someone can put up a 
political sign for an unlimited amount of time prior to the event or election? What is the 
State’s definition of “pre-election” in regards to time limits? 

• Answer: According to the Municipal Research Services Center (MRSC) of Washington, 
pre-election time limits are unconstitutional. “It is not legally possible to limit the time in 
advance of an election that political signs can be posted in the places where political 
signs are allowed.” The State does not define pre-election. 

• Question: Can someone put up a political sign on the “Welcome to Oak Harbor” 
entrance sign or on the trees along SR20 because these are within the public right-of-
way? If so, couldn’t these signs stay up for an indefinite period of time?  

• Answer: The Collier case concluded that political signs cannot be prohibited within the 
public right-of-way. However, the Washington State Department of Transportation 
(WSDOT) has issued an opinion prohibiting political signs within state highway rights-of-
way.  City staff does not know whether the WSDOT prohibition is correct or how it aligns 
with the conclusions of Collier.  

• Question: What is the definition of a political sign? Does the City have any ability to limit 
the content of political signs? 

• Answer: OHMC 19.36.020(31) defines political signs as “signs advertising a candidate 
or candidates for public elective office, or a political party, or signs urging a particular 
vote on a public issue decided by ballot.” According to longstanding case law, with the 
exception of obscenity, the City cannot regulate the content of signs. 

Planning Commission 
November 22, 2011 

Page 1 of 7 
4



 

• Question: How have other communities handled these issues? 

• Answer: Staff attached relevant codes from Pierce County, City of Redmond, and City 
of Kirkland to the agenda packet. Staff provided the codes as examples, but their legality 
or constitutionality has not been research. 

Mr. Spoo provided an additional handout (Attachment A) regarding the City of Redmond. 

Mr. Spoo displayed the following depiction of the “vision triangle” while explaining that signage 
would not be allowed within the “vision triangle” for safety reasons.  

 
Mr. Spoo also reported that the City Council will be considering a six-month extension of the 
interim sign code which will extend the interim ordinance to June 2012. 

Planning Commission Discussion 
Mr. Neil asked if the “dancing pizza” signs would be addressed.  Mr. Spoo said that these types 
of signs fall outside of the scope of this amendment. 

Ms. Jensen asked to have real estate signs addressed in the draft code.  Mr. Spoo indicated 
that real estate signs will be addressed. 

Ms. Johnson asked if signs could be addressed in the Comprehensive Plan in terms of 
aesthetics.  Mr. Powers said that the Urban Design Element does not have specific policies or 
goal statements directed at signage but there are statements that address community 
aesthetics and possibly the aesthetics of the right-of-way or discussions about appropriate 
design treatments for gateway entries into the community.  If the Commission thinks work needs 
to be done from a goals and policies perspective to lay a clearly defined foundation for our sign 
code in the Comprehensive Plan that can be discussed in the Comprehensive Plan Docket 
agenda item that will follow.  As for the “dancing pizza” signs, Mr. Powers noted that six months 
is not a lot of time to address sign codes and if the project takes longer we may not be able to 
meet the six month deadline but staff could provide some language for review. 

Mr. Neil said that he believed that the dancing signs were a distraction at intersections.   

Mr. Wallin commented that he has seen sign ordinances that have stipulations regarding the 
“vision triangle”. 

Mr. Oliver commented that he knew a special needs person that makes his money by carrying a 
sign and would hate to take away that job option. 

Ms. Johnson asked if the City can allow a certain amount of “visual retail space” to control 
community aesthetics.  Mr. Spoo said that he had seen that done in some of the city codes but 
that he couldn’t speak to its constitutionality.  Mr. Powers added that it would have to be framed 
from something other than an aesthetic perspective.   

Planning Commission 
November 22, 2011 

Page 2 of 7 
5



 

Mr. Wallin commented that he has seen where other communities have a permit process and 
each candidate is allowed a certain number of spots on public property and they pay a permit 
fee.  He wasn’t sure about allowing signs on public right-of-ways because most of the cities that 
he looked at didn’t allow signs on public right-of-ways.  He found another Seattle document that 
said you aren’t allowed to put signs in public right-of-ways.  He also stated that the Supreme 
Court has upheld and allowed cities to maintain the part of the Code that doesn’t allow 
temporary signs.  We can’t just say political signs but have to address all signs in the same way 
so it will stand up constitutionally.   

Mr. Powers said that the consequence of treating all signs the same is that the regulations 
would include real estate signs and signs used to advertise charity/civic organization fund 
raisers.   

Ms. Johnson said that she wouldn’t mind that consequence.  She didn’t think that public 
property was an appropriate place for commercial, charity or political communication.  Ms. 
Johnson also asked if the “vision triangle” applied to private property as well, e.g. the corner of 
Whidbey Avenue and SR20.  Mr. Spoo said that the “vision triangle” would apply to private 
property as well.  

Ms. Johnson commented that if there was a planter in front of a store and a political sign is 
placed there it implies commercial endorsement, is there language that says you have to get the 
storeowner’s permission to put your sign there.  Mr. Spoo said that Municipal Research 
Services Center (MRSC) recommends that you get the signature of the adjacent property owner 
even though it is in the public right-of-way. 

Ms. Johnson asked about liability and who would be responsible if there was an injury or 
damage from a sign on public property.  Mr. Spoo believed it would be the person that put the 
sign up.  Ms. Johnson believed signs on public property should not expose the City to undue 
financial risk. 

There was discussion about signs that were obscene versus uncomfortable.  Mr. Powers noted 
there are many subtopics to the sign code and when cities dive into sign codes the process can 
take a year or more.  Mr. Powers stressed that this amendment was to address what is political 
speech and how we can or cannot regulate it and recommended that the Commission narrow 
the discussion to that issue.  

Mr. Neil commented that he wanted everyone to have their political signs but he didn’t want to 
see fifty political signs in Windjammer Park and he didn’t want to see them along the tree line all 
year long.  He wanted to see the sign code be as restrictive as possible but to be constitutional 
as well.  

Ms. Jensen asked if the City Attorney would be able to address some of Planning Commission’s 
questions.  Mr. Power indicated that he has spoken with the City Attorney about attending one 
of the Planning Commission meetings. 

Mr. Wasinger asked if temporary signage was tied to permanent signage for retail.  Mr. Powers 
indicated that the sign provisions regarding banners changed about six years ago.  There is a 
limitation on banners if you don’t have permanent signs. Mr. Powers didn’t believe that there are 
regulations which limit the temporary signs for permanent commercial properties other than 
placement of the a-frame signs which don’t count toward the total number of signs.  The Code 
sets limit on the number of signs which each property can have. It is a function of the size of the 
building and the facade and other characteristics that come into play. 

Planning Commission 
November 22, 2011 

Page 3 of 7 
6



 

Ms. Johnson commented that signage may be economy driven.  When the economy is down 
people don’t have the money for the nicer signs so there is signage overload and the signs look 
junky.  

Mr. Oliver asked if murals on the side of buildings were considered signage.  Mr. Powers said 
that there is a section in the sign code that provides a definition of signs which essentially says if 
a commercial message is involved, it is signage.  If it is purely art and is not advertising a 
particular business then it would not be seen as signage. 

Ms. Jensen pointed out the sandwich boards at the top of Dock Street and asked if it would be 
better to a have a kiosk.  Mr. Powers noted that the sandwich boards were allowed temporarily 
to help during the Pioneer Way construction project.  He also noted that we can’t have off-
premise signs for certain business and not for others.  Off-premise signage is typically where 
billboards have been addressed.  Most communities don’t allow off-premise signage. 

Mr. Fakkema asked if it was possible to say that no one candidate could have his/her signs 
closer than 100 yards from one sign to the next.  Mr. Spoo said that his best guess was no, 
because it gets back to the issue of not limiting the number of signs due to free speech rights. 

Mr. Spoo indicated that staff would look closer at whether the City can prohibit signs in the 
public right-of-way as Mr. Wallin has pointed out that other cities have done.  Staff will also 
invite the City Attorney to answer questions at the next meeting. 

Mr. Wallin wanted to look into the possibility of being specific about eliminating signage in parks 
and light poles but allow signs in planter strips and other appropriate areas. 

2012 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT DOCKET – Public Meeting 
Mr. Kamak explained that a preliminary docket is compiled each year with input from the public 
and the Planning Commission.  This is done prior to a December 1st deadline and therefore this 
November Planning Commission meeting is a good time to discuss potential ideas and items for 
the preliminary docket. 

Mr. Kamak explained that there are three types of Comprehensive Plan Amendments: 
• Sponsored Amendments 

Sponsored amendments can either be private or public.  An example of a private 
amendment is a request for changes to land use designations that result in a change to the 
Future Land Use Map in the Comprehensive Plan.  Public sponsored amendments are 
requests for changes to policies with the Comprehensive Plan.  Since changes to policies 
have potential for a larger community-wide impact and may affect other referenced plans, 
the procedures to consider these changes are different than the private sponsored 
amendments. 

• Mandatory Amendments 
These are amendments mandated by the State through the Growth Management Act or 
other laws.  The updates to the Capital Improvement Plan are done every year fall under 
this category.  This year the Shoreline Management Program will be on the docket under 
this category.  The requirements of RCW 36.70A.130 (3) related to review of urban growth 
areas and any revision to accommodate urban growth projected to occur for the succeeding 
twenty years will also be under this category.  Currently this requirement is titled as “UGA 
Capacity Analysis” and is currently on the City’s docket.  Mandatory Amendments are 
automatically given a Priority A in accordance to OHMC 18.15.050 (4). 

• Discretionary Amendments 
These amendments are added to the annual docket to proactively add, amend, revise, 
delete or further goals and policies in the Comprehensive Plan. Discretionary items can be 
added to the docket by boards, commissions, city council and by the director of 

Planning Commission 
November 22, 2011 

Page 4 of 7 
7



 

development services.  This is the category under which the Planning Commission can add 
items for consideration.  The Planning Commission discussed a couple issues at the 
October meeting that can potentially be added to the docket under this category.  One was 
the list of non-enterprise project in the Capital Improvements Plan, its priority and relevance 
for current times.  The idea of providing opportunities for large commercial developments 
was also brought up at the last meeting.  Ideas such as these or other policy changes fall 
under this category.  Mr. Kamak noted that OHMC 18.15.050(3)(c) also requires that 
discretionary items from boards and commissions shall be added to the docket only after 
such items have received a majority vote by said board, commission or council. 

Mr. Kamak reminded the Planning Commission that the Comprehensive Plan is a general policy 
and goal document and should not be too specific.  If it is too narrowly focused staff may not be 
able to apply it effectively.   

Mr. Kamak concluded his presentation by recommending that the Planning Commission discuss 
potential discretionary items for the 2012 Preliminary Comprehensive Plan Docket, provide 
public input opportunities on potential discretionary items under consideration and vote on each 
discretionary item to add to the preliminary docket for City Council consideration. 

Planning Commission Discussion 
Ms. Jensen stated that she would like to revisit the 2006 Commercial Land Inventory.  She 
wanted the City to be proactive and have land available. 

Mr. Wallin asked if the hearing by the Growth Management Hearings Board might affect the 
commercial land inventory.  Mr. Powers said that in one sense it will, because if we are planning 
for a larger population, in theory you need a larger amount of commercial property to support 
that population.  In another sense, not so much, because the focus of the hearing was more 
about the capacity for residential land.  In 2006 we identified that we were short approximately 
40 acres of commercial properties to serve the City.  The Council added some property at that 
time but chose not to add some of the other properties that were suggested by the Planning 
Commission at that time.  So we are still shy of the amount needed according to the 2006 
analysis.  

Mr. Oliver asked what type of commercial businesses we want to attract, if it is “big box” stores 
there is only one parcel in Oak Harbor that is even close and that parcel is short by 2.25 acres. 

Ms. Johnson commented that the point of putting the review of the 2006 Commercial Land 
Inventory on the docket is so that the community could have that conversation.  If in that 
process of review the Planning Commission is uncomfortable with recommending carving out 
more land for “big box” stores then we are saying that our community value is just to wait until 
someone comes in and pays the price for the property that is available.  Or if goal is to attract 
more of those then we make more land available and make it easier come in now. 

Ms. Jensen pointed out that there isn’t even enough acreage for the medium size store that 
would need 1.5 acres.  Discussion continued about the rezoning process and challenges 
associated with compliance with the ACUIZ and APZ planning regulations. 

There were additional questions about public noticing, the docket process and timelines. 
 
MOTION: MR. WALLIN MOVED, MS. JENSEN SECOND, MR. OLIVER OPPOSED A 

MOTION TO RECOMMEND THAT THE CITY COUNCIL ADD A REVIEW OF 
2006 COMMERCIAL LAND INVENTORY TO 2012 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
DOCKET.  MOTION PASSED. 

Planning Commission 
November 22, 2011 

Page 5 of 7 
8



 

Ms. Jensen expressed concern about the public notices and people not understanding what is 
advertised for discussion at Planning Commission meetings.  Mr. Kamak indicated that the 
process has been designed so that there is ample time for the public to participate and that the 
City Council meetings garner more public attention.  The Council will have at least two meetings 
on the docket items and maybe through those discussions the public will understand what is 
being tackled in the amendment process.  
 
MOTION: MR. WALLIN MOVED, MS. JENSEN SECONDED A MOTION TO 

RECOMMEND THAT THE CITY COUNCIL ADD A REVIEW OF THE NON-
ENTERPRISE PROJECTS IN THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN TO 2012 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN DOCKET.  MOTION CARRIED. 

Ms. Johnson asked if view corridors would be a Comprehensive Plan amendment.  Mr. Powers 
said that view corridors are talked about in the Comprehensive Plan.  Ms. Johnson indicated 
that she would like a clear understanding of view corridors that the community cares about in 
the Comprehensive Plan.  Mr. Kamak noted that view corridors are indicated on a map and in 
policies.  Some of them have already translated into code, the height limitations in the CBD 
district are an example.  There was a study done that identified this area as a view that needed 
to be protected.  Mr. Powers added that it might be worthwhile to examine the view corridor 
policies again to establish firmer footing for some code language.  

Mr. Powers suggested that assuming there is no meeting in December, staff will present 
information and language and then the Commission can decide if the item should remain on the 
list at the meeting in January. 

Ms. Jensen asked Ms. Johnson if she was asking to keep Pioneer Way connected visually to 
the waterfront in certain places.  Ms. Johnson said that wasn’t her only goal but that she wanted 
make sure there was a clear inventory of where the community views are and that if things 
develop in a certain way that we are still going to protect them over the long haul so that we 
don’t have a situation where all of the sudden there are certain parts of town that have no 
waterfront connectivity and we are building a brand around having that waterfront connectivity. 

MOTION: MS. JOHNSON MOVED, MR OLIVER SECONDED A MOTION TO 
RECOMMEND THAT THE CITY COUNCIL ADD A REVIEW OF THE VIEW 
CORRIDORS TO 2012 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN DOCKET.  MOTION 
CARRIED. 

Ms. Johnson suggest addressing the visual clutter situation in the Comprehensive Plan Docket 
and tied to that would be a discussion of landscaping.  Ms. Johnson thought that landscaping 
was economically driven and as businesses get poor they can’t maintain certain types of 
landscaping.  Mr. Kamak commented that landscaping is a sensitive topic for the community 
and there are many policies that address landscaping.  Mr. Kamak also pointed out that the 
Code provides options and one of the options is zero-scape.  Mr. Kamak cautioned against 
reacting to the current situation especially when it comes to the Comprehensive Plan because 
these are documents that are looking ahead 20, 30, 40 years.  The Code can be used to 
address current times. 

Ms. Johnson asked about addressing the sign issue in the Comprehensive Plan.  Mr. Powers 
indicated that most of the issues that were discussed are Code issues and not Comprehensive 
Plan issues.  Policies that relate to signage in the Comprehensive Plan are general e.g. “Signs 
in keeping with Oak Harbor’s character”.  Mr. Powers suggested that the Planning Commission 
could look at the Code issues at a later time or add a review of policies that address signage in 
the Comprehensive Plan. Staff will come back with all the policies that address signage in the 
Comprehensive Plan.  The Planning Commission can look at them and if the members think 

Planning Commission 
November 22, 2011 

Page 6 of 7 
9



 

Planning Commission 
November 22, 2011 

Page 7 of 7 

that the policies are adequate it can be removed from the list before making a recommendation 
to the City Council. 

Ms. Johnson indicated that she would be more comfortable reviewing the policies that address 
signage in the Comprehensive Plan before getting into the Code. 

MOTION: MS. JOHNSON MOVED, MR. WASINGER SECONDED A MOTION TO 
REVIEW THE EXISTING SIGNAGE POLICIES WITHIN THE 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN.  MOTION CARRIED. 

Ms. Johnson asked if design overlay districts would be within the Comprehensive Plan topic.  
Mr. Powers said it is.  Mr. Johnson recalled that there was a design overlay district for the 
downtown area which would allow the downtown to have different signage and visual 
requirements than on the highway.  Mr. Powers commented that the policy is in the 
Comprehensive plan as is the policy for Midway Boulevard but the policies have not translated 
into ordinance yet.  Ms. Jensen asked why the policies were not in ordinance yet.  Mr. Powers 
said that it was a staff resource issue. 

Mr. Kamak noted that there are a lot of policies that have not translated into Code possibly 
because they haven’t surfaced as an issue yet or because staff resources are not available to 
put them all into Code.  Mr. Wallin recognized that the list of items could be lengthy and asked 
who would dedicate the staff resources.  Mr. Powers said that the Council would decide on what 
staff would tackle.  Secondly, in a year where there are mandated items, the mandated items 
have priority A and discretionary items fall to priority C.  Some of the items are more challenging 
than others and there would be staff input as to what could realistically be accomplished.  Mr. 
Wallin asked if the Planning Commission could prioritize the items.  Mr. Powers said they could.  
Mr. Kamak noted that one of the review criteria in the Comprehensive Plan amendment process 
is staff resources. 

Ms. Jensen asked if the City had panhandler rules.  Mr. Oliver asked about City Hall renovation. 

Mr. Powers indicated that the City Hall renovation was on the non-enterprise list in the Capital 
Improvement Plan but has been removed.  Both the panhandler rules and the City Hall 
renovation are not Comprehensive Plan issues. 

ADJOURN:  9:32 p.m. 

10



11



12



2012 

Comprehensive Plan Amendment  

Docket 

 

Public Hearing 

13



  

 Date: __January 24, 2012 

Subject: 2012 Comprehensive Plan 
Amendments – Preliminary 
Docket    

FROM: Cac Kamak, AICP  
Senior Planner 

   
 

City of Oak Harbor 
Planning Commission Report 

 
PURPOSE 
This report presents the preliminary docket for the 2012 Comprehensive Plan 
amendments.  The preliminary docket is intended to review ideas generated by the 
community, Planning Commission, City Council and the Director of Development 
Services on the amendments to pursue in 2012.  The City Council is required by OHMC 
18.15.040(8) to finalize the docket before the end of March. 
 
AUTHORITY 
The City is required by the Growth Management Act (GMA) to adopt a comprehensive 
plan and to review and revise it pursuant to RCW 36.70A.130.  Oak Harbor Municipal 
Code Chapter 18.15 prescribes the process for considering Comprehensive Plan 
amendments.  The code requires the Planning Commission to hold a public hearing, 
review the preliminary docket and make a recommendation to the City Council. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The process for the 2012 Comprehensive Plan Amendments was initiated in October 
2011 with a call for applications.  The call for applications provides the community an 
opportunity to have direct input into the amendments that should be considered for 2012.  
The deadline for the applications was December 1st in accordance with OHMC 18.15.040 
(2).  No applications were received.  Suggestions for amendments were also discussed at 
the November 22, 2011 Planning Commission meeting.  The Planning Commission had a 
few suggestions that are discussed further below. 
 
The preliminary docket compiled after the December 1 deadline was advertised in the 
local newspaper in accordance with OHMC 18.15.040 (6).   
 
DISCUSSION 
Items placed on the docket will fall into one of three categories.  These categories are 
Sponsored, Mandated and Discretionary and are defined in OHMC 18.15.050. 
 
Sponsored Amendments 
Sponsored amendments are requests for changes initiated by the public through an 
application process.  The most common amendments are land use changes.  This year the 
city did not receive any applications.  However, there is a request for a land use change 
this year.  Since it is initiated by the Director of Development Services it is listed under 
the Discretionary amendments. 
 
 
 

14



  

Mandated Amendments 
Mandated amendments are changes that are either required by the State, GMA or by 
OHMC.  The mandated amendments identified for 2012 are listed below. 
 

Capital Improvements Plan (CIP) 
The Capital Improvements Plan is updated annually as part of the Comprehensive 
Plan amendment cycle.  The updates to the Plan reflect the most recent and 
accurate information available.  This normally includes updates to reflect 
consistency with adopted plans, updates to revenues and expenditures provided by 
the Finance Department, and any changes to schedules or project costs.   
 
Shoreline Master Program (SMP) Update 
This update is required by RCW 90.58.080.  The city received a grant to update 
this plan and the process is currently underway.  The City Council is expected to 
review and approve the update concurrent with the other 2012 amendments.  The 
Department of Ecology reviews the SMP after City Council approval and 
provides the final approval of this Plan. 
 
Comprehensive Plan Update 2015 
This is the ongoing work that will lead to an update of the Comprehensive Plan in 
2015 as required by RCW 36.70A.130.  This is listed on the docket to track 
progress and identify opportunities for public involvement as well as coordination 
with other agencies on data related to population demographics, land use and 
capacities.  No action is expected on this item for 2012. 

 
 
Discretionary Amendments 
Discretionary amendments are changes that the community desires to see in the 
comprehensive plan that are not mandated by the State or other agencies.  This year the 
Planning Commission has suggested a few ideas to consider.  These have been discussed 
further below.  The Director of Development Services has also added an amendment for 
consideration under this section.   
 

1. Revisit the Commercial Lands Inventory done in 2006 and proactively look for 
opportunities to increase the inventory of commercially designated lands, 
including those available for large scale commercial enterprises. (Planning 
Commission) 

o “Large scale” would have to be defined with a minimum size expectation.  
The last request for a large scale development was in 2006 for 33 acres. 

o Undeveloped commercial lands are still available along SR 20 in Oak Harbor 
o Approximately 13.75 acres in 3 lots under one ownership was rezoned 

for Community Commercial in 2008 along Goldie Road west of NE 
16th Avenue 

o The commercial lands inventory will need to be updated to determine 
the need and quantity for additional commercial lands 

o Related Comprehensive Plan Goals and Policies 
 Land Use - Goal 14 - To strengthen and enlarge the 

commercial economic base of the community by promoting the 

15



  

development of facilities that provide a competitive and 
stimulating business environment. 

• 14.a Locate different types of commercial uses in a manner 
that is consistent with existing traffic patterns and public 
facilities, and is compatible with nearby and adjacent land 
uses. 

• 14.b  Promote the development of clustered commercial 
facilities that will accommodate high traffic-generating uses.  
Large single sites are preferred over ad hoc strip 
commercialization. 

• 14.g Promote commercial infill development. 
• 14.i   Create a Midway Boulevard Revitalization Overlay 

District to actively promote new and infill commercial and 
mixed use development and enhance the sense of place for 
this traditional commercial corridor. Flexible development 
standards, such as raising the height limit, allowing 
development to extend to the street, parking requirement 
reductions or others, and financial incentives, such as tax 
breaks, business improvement districts, public/private 
partnerships or others, should be used to support 
revitalization. The City should take an active role in creating 
strong unifying amenities within the public realm that 
complement the Overlay District objectives. 

• 14.j   Before designating new commercial areas of sufficient 
size to accommodate larger shopping centers and retailers, 
determine the level of public support through broad-based 
public consultation. 
 

 
2. Review the non-enterprise funded projects listed in the City’s Capital 

Improvement Plan which currently includes projects such as but not limited to 
Windjammer Park Redevelopment, Municipal Pier, Special Events Center, etc. 
and determine their current relevance and need. (Planning Commission) 

o Implementation of projects in this list has been based on funding 
opportunities and less on the assigned priorities 

o Changes can be discussed as part of the annual mandated update to the 
Capital Improvements Plan 

o Some of the projects placed on the list are from other approved plans. 
o Related Comprehensive Plan Goals and Policies 

 Capital Facilities - Goal 2 - Implement capital facilities projects in 
accordance with the funding policy priorities of Oak Harbor. 

 2.a Program and prioritize City capital improvements for 
consistency with the Comprehensive Plan.  The City's capital 
improvement funding priorities should be: 
• 1.  Urgent projects which cannot reasonably be postponed 
including, but not limited to, those reconstruction, upgrading or 
new construction projects which are needed to protect public 
health, safety and welfare. 
• 2. Reconstruction, major maintenance or expansion of the 
City's existing infrastructure in order to provide for service to the 
existing community. 

16



  

 3. New projects where the need or demand for service 
already exists. 
 4. Expansion projects in partially developed or developing 

areas where demand is anticipated as a result of, or in 
preparation for, future growth. 
 

3. Review if the current Comprehensive Plan goals and policies adequately identify 
and protect view corridors within the City. (Planning Commission) 

o View Corridors are identified in Map 3 of the Parks, Recreation and Open 
Space Element in the Comprehensive Plan. 

o There is existing language in the Comprehensive Plan for protection of 
viewsheds and corridors. 

o Related Comprehensive Plan Goals and Policies 
 Urban Design Element - Goal 5 -  Protect viewsheds and view 

corridors:   Discussion - The City of Oak Harbor defines viewsheds 
as a panoramic view from a single location.  Significant viewsheds 
include views of Mt. Baker, Mt. Rainier, Cascade mountain range, 
Olympic mountain range, Oak Harbor Bay, Maylor Point (especially 
wooded and tidal flat areas) and Saratoga Passage.  The view 
corridors and viewsheds within the City should be identified and 
accurately mapped at a useable scale so they can appropriately guide 
development. 

 Policy: 5.a Consideration of building impacts on viewsheds and view 
corridors shall be exercised in all developments, and mitigation 
measures shall be applied to protect existing views. 
Discussion: The City may incorporate policies and guidelines to 
protect these resources, such as developing: a unified bulk program 
for building envelopes; performance based zoning; and, density 
bonuses as development incentives. 

o Current zoning regulations for height limitations in the Central Business 
District are a result of a view study done in 1999.  There is specific language 
in the code for additional review of buildings in the CBD that would like to 
exceed height limitations specifically to protect views (OHMC 
19.20.320.8(d)). 

o The existing code language was used in the recent past to evaluate the 
Flemmings Project proposed in the Central Business District.  Though this 
project was not implemented, the review shaped the design to protect views 
from SE Jensen Street. 
 

4. Review if the current Comprehensive Plan goals and policies adequately protect 
the City from the proliferation of signs. (Planning Commission) 

o Current codes on signs are based on existing goals and policies in the 
comprehensive plan 

o The sign code determines the number and type of signs that are permitted 
based on frontage, size of buildings, number of businesses etc.  

o The existing code also addresses temporary signs 
o Related Comprehensive Plan Goals and Policies 

 Land Use – Community Identity - Goal 1 - To respect the "small 
town" heritage of Oak Harbor while enhancing the unique character 
of its neighborhoods and districts with development that is fitting 
with the City’s future as a regional center. 

17



  

• 1.d Business-related signs, both temporary and permanent, 
should serve the needs of the business owner and public to 
identify business locations but should not proliferate in a manner 
whereby the sum of all signs detracts from a positive aesthetic 
experience of the City’s commercial areas. 
• 1.e Signage standards should promote design sensitivity to 
the context in which signs are placed and scaled to both the mass 
of the building and the location of the sign on the lot. 
• Urban Design – Goal 5 - Protect viewsheds and view 
corridors 
• 5.c Free standing business signs should be consistent with 
the speed limit of roadways, and the character of land use 
districts. 

o Sign regulations are enforced on a complaint basis 
 

5. Shoreline Master Program Amendment and Land use change for properties 
(R13201-160-0920, R13201-072-1040 and R13201-067-1150) located on SE 
Catalina Drive south of Pioneer Way (map attached). This item would consider 
various land use designations, potentially even an overlay zone, with the 
intended goal to permit a variety of uses to promote upland improvements 
adjacent to the Marina including options for industrial uses such as Nichols 
Brothers Boat Builders.  The current land use designation is Public Facilities. 
(Planning Director) 

o Based on recent interest in the community to provide opportunities for water 
related industries to locate in Oak Harbor along the shoreline 

o Continuing to implement the Marina Redevelopment Plan that recommends 
upland improvements with uses that support water recreation and the marina. 

o This Shoreline Master Program Amendment is different that the Shoreline 
Master Program Update.  The amendment will follow a different timeline 
and will be ahead of the update. 
 

 
OHMC 18.15.070 establishes the criteria to review the Comprehensive Plan Amendment 
Docket.  The attached table provides the applicability of the criteria to the proposed 
preliminary docket.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
1. Conduct the public hearing. 
2. A separate vote on each of the amendments to formulate a recommendation to the 

City Council 
 
Attachments:  
Attachment 1 - Map of area proposed for land use changes 
Attachment 2 -  Docket items and criteria  
 

18



19



20



21


	01-24-12 PC Agenda.pdf
	CITY OF OAK HARBOR       AGENDA
	PLANNING COMMISSION January 24, 2012
	ROLL CALL: NEIL      JENSEN    FAKKEMA     
	WASINGER       OLIVER  


	2012 Comprehensive Plan amndt preliminary docket Planning Commission reportl.pdf
	RECOMMENDATIONS
	Attachments: 




<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice




